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I. INTRODUCTION  
Pursuant to Rule 14.5 of the California Public Utilities Commission’s Rules of Practice 

and Procedure, the Division of Ratepayer Advocates (DRA) submits these Reply Comments on 

Draft Resolution T-17349 (Draft Resolution) and Alternate Draft Resolution T-172349 

(Alternate), relating to funding from the California Advanced Services Fund (CASF) Rural and 

Urban Regional Broadband Consortia Account (Consortia Grant Account).   

In addition to DRA, three parties submitted opening comments on the Draft Resolution 

and Alternate:  The Youth Policy Institute on behalf of Los Angeles County Regional Broadband 

Consortia, Amador-Tuolumne Community Action Agency, and the California Partnership for the 

San Joaquin Valley (Partnership).  The comments from these three parties are nearly identical.  

They all claim, verbatim, that there are no constraints in SB 1040 on the amount of funds that 

can be deposited or distributed annually, and urge the Commission to adopt the higher funding 

level for the Los Angeles Region in the Alternate rather than the budget proposed in the Draft 

Resolution.1 

These parties are mistaken in their claim that there are no constraints on the amount of 

funds that may be awarded.  SB 1040 specifically provides that the Commission shall develop, 

administer and implement the CASF.  Moreover, Decision (D.) 11-06-038 sets upper limits for 

each applicant of $150,000 in year 1 and $450,000 over three years, whereby the Los Angeles 

County Regional Broadband Consortium (LACRBC) is eligible for budget limits for each of its 

five sub-regions.  As such, DRA continues to urge the Commission to deny the Alternate 

because it would exceed Consortia Grant Account limits in the Los Angeles region by $20,000 in 

year 1 and by $963,073 over three years.  

II. COMMENTING PARTIES MISTAKENLY CLAIM THERE ARE NO 
LIMITS FOR CONSORTIA GRANT BUDGETS 
The commenting parties argue that SB 1040 contains no constraints on the amount of 

funds that can be collected or distributed annually.2  However, this claim is mistaken for several 

                                              
1 Comments of the Youth Policy Institute on D.11-06-038 for Communications Division’s Draft 
Resolution T-17349 and Alternate Draft Resolution T-17349 at 1; Comments of Amador-Tuolumne 
Community Action Agency on D.11-06-038 for Communications Division’s Draft Resolution T-17349 
and Alternate Draft Resolution T-17349 at 1-2; Comments of California Partnership for the San Joaquin 
Valley (Partnership) on D.11-06-038 for Communications Division’s Draft Resolution T-17349 and 
Alternate Draft Resolution T-17349 at 1. 
2 Ibid. 
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reasons.  First, SB 1040 specifically allocates $10 million to the Consortia Grant Account, thus 

necessarily limiting the amount of money that can be collected and distributed.3  Moreover, 

while SB 1040 authorizes the Commission to collect an additional $125 million for the CASF 

over the previously authorized $100 million, it specifically states that the Commission may 

collect these additional moneys “in an amount not to exceed twenty-five million dollars 

($25,000,000) per year”4, thus placing another limit on the amounts that may be collected (and 

thus distributed) annually.  While the Commission may collect a higher amount, it must first 

determine that collecting a higher amount in any year will not result in an increase in the total 

amount of all surcharges collected from telephone customers that year.5  The Commission has 

not made that determination.   

In addition, SB 1040 specifically provides that the Commission shall develop, administer, 

and implement the CASF.6  Pursuant to that authority, in Decision (D.) 11-06-038 the 

Commission set upper limits for each applicant of $150,000 in year 1 and $450,000 over three 

years, and also limited each subarea consortia in the Los Angeles region to the $150,000 annual 

and $450,000 three-year caps.7  Regardless of whether SB 1040 contains constraints on the 

amounts that may be awarded individual grant applicants, these are the budget limits set by the 

Commission in judiciously implementing the Consortia Grant Account.  The Alternate 

Resolution should be rejected because it fails to conform to the requirements set forth in D.11-

06-038.  If the consortia parties disagree with the funding levels adopted in that decision, then 

they should file a petition for modification of D.11-06-038.  However, DRA supports budget 

limits because: (1) the results of the proposed Consortia projects are not specifically identified; 

and (2) DRA wants the significant investment of ratepayer funds in the Consortia Grant Account 

and CASF overall to produce positive results for California’s citizens in the adoption of strong 

CASF projects in unserved and underserved areas. 

                                              
3 Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 281(b)(1)(B). 
4 Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 281(b)(3). 
5 Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 281(b)(3). 
6 Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 281(a). 
7 D.11-06-038, mimeo, at 15, as modified by D.11-07-034. 
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III. THE COMMISSION SHOULD DENY THE ALTERNATE RESOLUTION 
BECAUSE IT EXCEEDS THE BUDGET LIMITS IN THE LOS ANGELES 
REGION AND WOULD PLACE THE CASF BUDGET IN JEOPARDY 
In their comments, the three parties each point out that D.11-06-038, and  

D.11-07-034 which corrected errors,8 approved a modified funding approach for the Los Angeles 

region, but the comments do not acknowledge that in the Los Angeles region, each eligible 

umbrella consortium may seek funding only up to the adopted $150,000 per year and $450,000 

three-year caps.9  Since the LACBRBC is comprised of five subareas, the total first year budget 

should not exceed $750,000 (5 x $150,000), while the total three-year budget should not exceed 

$2,250,000 (5 x $450,000).  Furthermore, nothing in these opening comments provides any 

support or new evidence detailing why the established budget limits should be exceeded, and 

why the requirements of D.11-06-038 should be ignored, especially given the fact that 

LACBRBC already has access to a significantly higher share of Consortia Grant Funds than any 

other region in the state.  DRA continues to urge the Commission to reject the Alternate, which 

would give the LACBRBC $770,000 in year 1 and $2,310,000 total over three years, amounts 

that exceed the limits set out in D.11-06-038.   

In addition, the Alternate acknowledges a concern that Consortia disbursements may 

exceed annual collections ($25,000,000 per year, as discussed above) and thus delay payments to 

LACBRBC.  The Alternate would place the CASF, which is comprised of ratepayers’ money, in 

jeopardy of being fiscally mismanaged.  As stated in DRA’s opening comments, the Alternate 

would allocate over half ($5.1 Million of the total $10 Million) of the Consortia Grant Account 

funding available through 2015 to seven projects.  DRA remains concerned that the Alternate 

would use a disproportionately large share of the available budget and urges the Commission to 

preserve more consortia funding for future year projects, recognizing that there are already seven 

additional project applications submitted to the funding process,10 and there will likely be more 

submittals between now and 2015.   

                                              
8 Order Correcting Errors in Decision 11-06-038 at 1 (issued July 21, 2011). This order corrects non-
substantive errors in certain attachments to D.11-06-038 and corrects certain wording errors regarding the 
Los Angeles region funding to clarify that the adopted annual and 3-year funding caps of 
$150,000/$450,000 were intended to apply to each separate umbrella consortium that seeks funding in the 
Los Angeles region.  
9 Ibid. 
10 Draft Resolution at 9 and Alternate at 8. 
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IV. CONCLUSION 
For the foregoing reasons, the Commission should reject the Alternate, which is clearly 

inconsistent with the requirements of D.11-06-038.  The Commission should not allow the 

LACRBC to exceed annual and 3-year budget limits and put the CASF at risk. DRA also 

continues to urge the Commission to reject the Draft Resolution in order to correct discrepancies 

in the Draft Resolution budget numbers and provide greater detail on Communications 

Division’s analysis.  Parties should then be afforded the opportunity to comment on that 

corrected and revised Draft Resolution prior to final adoption.  

       

Respectfully submitted, 

 
/s/ KIMBERLY J. LIPPI 
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